TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Office of the County Attorney

Ronald E. Dougherty County Office Building 56 Main Street Owego, NY 13827

Peter J. DeWind County Altorney % 607 687 8253 & 607 223 7003 @ www.TiogaCounlyNY. com

FINANCE, LEGAL & SAFETY COMMITTEE
July 11, 2023
10:30 a.m.

o APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 13, 2023

o FINANCIAL

O

O

Safety
Law

o OLD BUSINESS

o 0 0 0 0

Litigation

In Rem

Motorola tower project

Historical Artifact

ILS lease of assigned counsel space

o NEW BUSINESS

o

o O 0 0O ©

Amended Title VI Plan

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
Voluntary Use of Respirators Policy

Budget

Ethics Board Meeting

First Amendment Auditor

o PERSONNEL

o

N/A

o RESOLUTIONS

O

O

AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 193-18 AS AMENDED BY RESOLUTION NO. 45-
23 AS AMENDED BY RESOULTION NO. 255-23; ADOPTION OF TIOGA
COUNTY TITLE VI PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE PLAN, LIMITED
ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN, DATA COLLECTION PLAN, ADA
TRANSITION PLAN AND EMPLOYEE TRAINING PLAN

ADOPT DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PROGRAM



o AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK: ADD NEW POLICY TO SECTION IX.
SAFETY RULES; SUBSECTION E. ENTITLED TIOGA COUNTY RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION PROGRAM FOR THE VOLUNTARY USE OF RESPIRATORS

o PROCLAMATIONS

o N/A

o EXECUTIVE SESSION

o ADJOURNMENT



TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Office of the County Attorney

Ronald E. Dougherty County Office Building 56 Main Street Owego, NY 13827

Peter J. DeWind County Attorney & 607 687 8253 & 607 223 7003 @ www.TiogaCountyNY. com

FINANCE, LEGAL AND SAFETY COMMITTEE
June 13, 2023
10:30 A.M.

ATTENDANCE:
Legislators: Chair Sauerbrey, Ciotoli, Brown, Mullen, Monell, Standinger,
Roberts, and Flesher

Staff: Legislative Clerk Haskell, County Attorney DeWind, Treasurer
McFadden, Deputy Treasurer Chandler, Chief Accountant Jerzak,
Accountant Schurter, Safety Officer Holbrook, Personnel Officer Parke,
Democratic Commissioner of Elections Wahls, Republican Commissioner of
Elections Layman, intern McFarland, Deputy Director of ECconomic
Development and Planning Woodburn

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: Legislator Ciotoli asked for a motion to approve the
May 9, 2023 minutes. Legislator Monell made the motion seconded by Legislator
Brown and was unanimously carried.

FINANCIAL: Safety's budget is tracking well. Safety has been paying for audiograms
for Public Works employees who were absent from April's testing date and new
hires. This budget line will need to be re-evaluated to consider these expenses now
that the hearing conservation program is back up and running. Law's budget is
tracking well however monies will need to be transferred into the “"Books"” object
ine to purchase needed books for Assistant County Attorney Lanouette.

OLD BUSINESS:

¢ Llitigation; A 50H hearing was conducted. It does not appear the County
has any liability however this claim might still proceed. A trial starts in July
and an appeal motion has been moved to this Fall. Juvenile delinquent
cases have seen a recent uptick in activity necessitating the use of
detention and placement. Mr. DeWind continues to monitor all litigation
claims.

In Rem was discussed during Finance's commitiee meeting.

o Motorola Tower Project continues to move forward with the assistance of
Assistant County Attorney Lanouette. SEQR Resolutions were submitted this
month. Mr, DeWind is in contact with the Town of Spencer regarding the
feasibility of a Verizon tower already located on the property.

¢ Historical Artifact: Public Works is spearheading this project and is exploring
cost effective means of removing the bell.



NEW BUSINESS:

« Amend and new policies: Title VI requires updating for recertification, a Sun
Safety Plan needs to be adopted to utilize Public Health grant monies.

¢ Resolutions: The three resolutions were briefly discussed.

e LS Budget: Years 1 through 5 monies have been expended and ILS is
currently working on Years 6 through 8 with the State. Walk-throughs of
potential rental space have been completed, however renovation costs
have yet to be determined.

» Title Vlrecertification: All required paperwork has been submitted.
Recertification is required every three years for grants monies received by
Public Works and Social Services.

¢ The Risk Management Audit was just completed with no recommendations.

¢ Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program (DBE}: This new policy will be
submitted next month for Legislative approval and is required for grant
monies received from the Department of Transporiation (DOT).

e« Compliance: Many counties have at least one full-time compliance officer
to ensure compliance with State and Federal regulations and requirements.
Law is managing compliance but would like to formalize the procedure.

¢ State of Emergency: The County has been served, along with several other
upstate counties, with a lawsuit regarding the State of Emergency. This
claim has been referred to NYMIR.

RESOLUTIONS: AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK: ADD NEW POLICY TO SECTION IX.
SAFETY RULES; SUBSECTION P. ENTITLED SUN SAFETY PLAN; AMEND RESOLUTION NO.
193-18 AS AMENDED BY RESOLUTION NO. 45-23; ADOPTION OF TIOGA COUNTY TITLE
VI PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE PLAN, LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN,
DATA COLLECTION PLAN, ADA TRANSITION PLAN AND EMPLOYEE TRAINING PLAN;
and APPOINT DBE LIAISON OFFICER were moved into full Legislative session without
further questions.

PROCLAMATIONS: None

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Mr. DeWind asked for an executive session to discuss litigation
and a personnel investigation. Legislator Monell made the motion to enter into
executive session seconded by Legislator Mullen at 11:15 A.M. Legislator Monell
made the motion to exit from executive session and was seconded by Legislator
Brown at 11:48 A.M.



ADJOURNMENT: Legislator Ciotoli adjourned the Finance, Legal, and Safety
Committee meeting at 11:49 AM.

Respectfully submitted,
%ﬁ redine :‘%’?yﬂ(yﬂ/

Secretary to the County Attorney



2} TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
2023 LAW BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 07

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

A General Fund

A1420 412706 Shared Services-At -50,079 0 -50,079 -19,871.88 .00 -30,207.12  39.7%*
Al1420 510010 Full Time 212,439 0 212,439 98,048.41 .00 114,390.59 46.2%
A1420 510020 Part Time/Temporar 45,000 0 45,000 16,288.47 .00 28,711.53 36.2%
A1420 510050 A1l other{on call, 2,000 -2,000 0 .00 .00 .00 .0%
Al420 520200 office Equipment 450 0 450 .00 .00 450.00 0%
Al420 540010 Advertising 100 27 127 127.00 .00 .00 100.0%
Al420 540040 Books 500 563 1,063 434.75 592.80 35.45 96.7%
Al420 540180 Dues 1,200 0 1,200 678.00 .00 522.00 56.5%
Al1420 540330 Legal Fees 65,000 0 65,000 21,448.00 20,700.00 22,852.00 64.8%
Al420 540331 Legal Fees-adolesc 0 1,410 1,410 250.00 .00 1,160.00 17.7%
Al420 540390 Mileage Expense 100 0 100 100.00 .00 .00 100.0%
Al420 540420 office supplies 825 -85 740 211.35 .00 528.65 28.6%
Al420 540480 Postage 150 0 150 75.87 .00 74.13 50.6%
Al420 540485 Printing/Paper 400 0 400 114.43 .00 285.57 28.6%
Al420 540731 Training/State Req 200 85 285 285.00 .00 .00 100.0%
Al1420 581088 State Retirement F 17,918 0 17,918 10,294.383 .00 7,623.59 57.5%
Al420 583088 sSocial Security Fr 15,182 0 15,182 8,668.20 .00 6,513.98 §7.1%
A1420 584088 workers Compensati 3,673 0 3,673 2,448.50 .00 1,224.52 66.7%
Al420 585588 pisability Insuran 204 0 204 101.79 .00 101.79 50.0%
Al420 586088 Health Insurance F 49,507 0 49,507 42,508.28 .00 6,999.10 85.9%
Al420 588988 Eap Fringe 44 0 44 30.50 .00 13.18  69.8%
TOTAL Law 364,313 0 364,813 182,241.50 21,292.80 161,278.96 55.8%
TOTAL General Fund 364,813 0 364,813 182,241.50 21,292.80 161,278.96  55.8%
TOTAL REVENUES -50,079 0 -50,079 -19,871.388 .00 -30,207.12
TOTAL EXPENSES 414,892 0 414,892 202,113.38 21,292.80 191,486.08
GRAND TOTAL 364,813 0 364,813 182,241.50 21,292.80 161,278.96  55.8%

** END OF REPORT - Generated by Freyvogel, Christine **

Repart generated: 07/03/2023 16:42
User: FreyvogelC Page 1
Program ID: glytdbud



2} TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
2023 SAFETY BUDGET REPORT

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

CI Ligbil1ty Insurance Fund
CIB042 504 Coordinator/Safet

CI8042 424010 1Interest And Earn 0 0 0 -621.47 .00 621.47 100.0%
CIB042 510010 Fulltime 57,523 0 57,523 17,230.43 .00 40,292.57  30.0%
CIB042 540140 Contracting servi 164,500 -161,000 3,500 2,454.00 520.00 526.00 85.0%
CI18042 540140 M7674 Contracting 0 161,000 161,000 31,296.80 73,703.20 56,000.00 65.2%
CI8042 540340 Literature 250 0 250 .00 .00 250.00 .0%
CI8042 540410 Nursing Supplies 2,000 0 2,000 1,226.27 .00 773.73  61.3%
CI8042 540420 office supplies 400 0 400 161.70 .00 238.30 40.4%
CI8042 540480 rostage 75 0 75 .00 .00 75.00 .0%
CIB8042 540640 sSupplies (Not Off 600 0 600 274.69 .00 325.31  45.8%
CI8042 540733 Training/All othe 3,500 0 3,500 417.19 .00 31,082.81 11.9%
CIB8042 581088 state Retirement 2,744 0 2,744 2,121.84 .00 621.94 77.3%
CIB042 583088 sSocial Security F 2,232 0 2,232 1,225.12 .00 1,006.98 54.9%
CI8042 584088 workers Compensat 1,224 0 1,224 391.76 .00 832.58 32.0%
CIB042 585588 Disability Insura 0 0 0 20.88 .00 -20.88 100.0%*
CI8042 586088 Health Insurance 0 0 0 8,104.96 .00 -8,104.96 100.0%*
CIB042 588988 Eap Fringe 15 0 15 4.88 .00 9.68 33.5%
TOTAL 504 coordinator/safety 235,063 0 235,063 64,309.05 74,223.20 96,530.53 58.9%
TOTAL Liability Insurance Fund 235,063 0 235,063 64,309.05 74,223.20 96,530.53 58.9%
TOTAL REVENUES 1] ] ) -621.47 .00 621.47
TOTAL EXPENSES 235,063 0 235,063 64,930.52 74,223.20 95,909.06
GRAND TOTAL 235,063 0 235,063 64,309.05 74,223.20 96,530.53 58.9%

*% END OF REPORT - Generated by Freyvogel, Christine **

Report generated: 07/03/2023 16:46 Pﬂg! 3
user: Freyvogel
Program ID: glytdbud



REFERRED TO: FINANCE, LEGAL AND SAFETY COMMITTEE
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 ADOPT DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
(DBE} PROGRAM

WHEREAS: The Department of Transportation {DOT) requires the establishment of
a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program (DBE} when two hundred and fifty
thousand dollars {$250,000} or more in financial assistance is received from the
DOT; and

WHEREAS: Tioga County is the recipient of federal-aid highway funds authorized
under Titles | and V of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of
1991 (ISTEA), Pub. L. 102-240, 105 Stat. 1914, Titles |, lll, and V of the Transportation
Equity Act for the 21st Century {TEA-21, Pub. L. 105-178, 112 Stat. 107; and

WHEREAS: Tioga County has received more than two hundred and fifty
thousand dollars ($250,000) in Federal financial assistance from the Department
of Transportation, and as a condition of receiving this assistance, Tioga County
has signed an assurance that it will comply with 49 CFR Part 26; and

WHEREAS: The County Attorney, in conjunction with the Deputy Director of
Public Works, has written and proposed a new program entitled Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with regulations of the U.S.
Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Part 26; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes adoption and
implementation of the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for
Tioga County.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM (DBE)

Tioga County
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program (DBE)

.  Policy Statement

.  General Requirements

lll.  Administrative Requirements

IV. Goals, Good Faith Efforts, and Counting
V. Certification Standards

VI. Certification Procedures

Vil. Compliance and Enforcement



POLICY STATEMENT

Tioga County has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
program in accordance with regulations of the US. Department of
Transportation {(DOT}, 49 CFR Part 26. Tioga County has received Federal
financial assistance from the Department of Transportation, and as a condition
of receiving this assistance, Tioga County has signed an assurance that it will
comply with 49 CFR Part 26.

It is the policy of Tioga County to ensure that DBEs have an equal opportunity to
receive and participate in DOT-assisted contracts. It is also our policy:

1. To ensure non-discrimination in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts;

2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for DOT-
assisted contracts;

3. To ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with
applicable law;

4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards
are permitted to participate as DBEs;

5. To help remove barriers 1o the participation of DBEs in DOT-assisted
contracts;

6. To assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the
marketplace outside the DBE Program.

The Deputy Commissioner of Public Works has been appointed as the DBE
Licaison Officer (DBELO). In that capacity, the Deputy Commissioner of Public
Works is responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE Program.
implementation of the DBE Program is accorded the same priority Qs
compliance with all other legal obligations incurred by Tioga County in its
financial assistance agreements with the Department of Transportation.

Tioga County has disseminated this policy statement to the Tioga County
Legistature and all of the components of our organization. Tioga County has
distributed this statement to DBE and non-DBE business communities that
perform work for us on DOT-assisted contracts as a contract attachment.

Martha Saverbrey, Legislative Chair Date



GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Tioga County is the recipient of federal-aid highway funds authorized under
Titles | and V of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991
(ISTEA), Pub. L. 102-240, 105 Stat. 19214, Titles 1, I, and V of the Transportation
Equity Act for the 21st Century {TEA-21, Pub. L. 105-178, 112 Stat. 107.

Tioga County is the recipient of federal transit funds authorized by Titles |, lll, V,
and VI of ISTEA, Pub. L. 102-240 or by Federal transit laws in Title 49, U.S. Code, or
Titles |, I, and V of TEA-21, Pub. L. 105-178.

Non-discrimination Requirements:

Tioga County will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any
person the benefits of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection
with the award and performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26 on
the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin.

In administering its DBE Program, Tioga County will not, directly or through
contractual or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration
that have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of
the objectives of the DBE Program with respect to individuals of a particular
race, color, sex, or national origin.

Record Keeping Requirements:
Tioga County will report DBE participation to DOT as follows:

» FHWA Recipients will report DBE participation on a quarterly basis, using
DOT Form 4630.

» FTA Recipients will report DBE parficipation on a quarterly basis, using DOT
Form 4630. These reports will reflect payments actually made to DBEs on
DOT-assisted contracts.

Bidders List:

Tioga County will utilize a bidders list from the New York State Unified
Certification Directory and the New York State MWBE Directory to provide
information on contracting opportunities to all DBE and non-DBE firms that bid or
quote on FTA/FHWA-assisted contracts.

The bidders list includes the name, address, phone number, fax number, e-mail
address of the small business, as well as the contract person and general



description of goods and/or services available from each specific small business.
In addition, the bidders list will include the DBE/non-DBE status.

The DBELO or designee will collect this information by requiring any firm
registering for its bidders list to submit proof of their certification as a DBE by NYS
Unified Certification Program (UCP). The DBELO or their designee will confirm the
vendor's registration through the UCP.

Federal Financial Assistance Agreement:

Tioga County has signed the following assurances, applicable to all DOT-assisted
contracts and their administration:

Assurance:

Tioga County shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or
sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the
administration of its DBE Program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The
recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to
ensure non-discrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted
confracts. The recipient’'s DBE Program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as
approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement.
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its
terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the
[Recipient] of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may
impose sanction as provided and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act
of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

This language will appear in financial assistance agreements with sub-recipients.
Contract Assurance:

Tioga County will ensure that the following clause is placed in every DOT-assisted
contract and subcontract:

The contractor, sub-recipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the
basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract.
The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to
carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may
result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient
deems appropriate.



ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
DBE Program Updates:

Since Tioga County has received an FTA and/or FHWA grant{s}, Tioga County will
continue to carry out this program until all funds from DOT financial assistance
have been expended. Tioga County will provide to DOT updates representing
significant changes in the program.

DBE Ligison Officer (DBELO):

Tioga County has designated the Deputy Commissioner of Public Works, 477
Route 96, Owego, NY 13827, 607-687-0302, as Tioga County's DBE Licison Officer.

In that capacity, the DBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the
DBE Program and ensuring that Tioga County complies with all provisions of 49
CFR Part 26. The DBELO has direct, independent access to the Chair of the
Legislature concerning DBE Program matters.

The DBELO is responsible for developing, implementing, and monitoring the DBE
Program, in coordination with other appropriate officials. The DBELO has staff to
assist in the administration of the program. The duties and responsibilities include
the following:

1. Gathers and reports statistical data and other information as required by
FTA/FHWA,

2. Reviews third party contracts and purchase requisitions for compliance

with this program.

Determines Tioga County’s annual goals.

Ensures that bid notices and requests for proposals are available to DBEs in

a fimely manner.

5. ldentifies contracts and procurements that include DBE reporting when
necessary.

6. Analyzes Tioga County's progress toward attainment and identifies ways
to improve progress.

7. Participates in pre-bid meetings.

8. Advises the Commissioner of Public Works on DBE matters and
achievement,

9. Determine contractor compliance with good faith efforts.

10. Utilize NYSDOT's UCP Directory to identify Certified DBE's.

= W



DBE Financial Institutions:

It is the policy of Tioga County o investigate the full extent of services offered by
financial institutions owned and controlled by socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals in the community, to make reasonable efforts to use
these institutions, and to encourage prime contractors on DOT-assisted
contracts to make use of these institutions. Tioga County has made efforts to
identify and use such institutions, however no such institutions exist in Tioga
County.

Prompt Payment Mechanisms:

Tioga County will include the following clause in each DOT-assisted prime
contract:

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime
contract for satistactory performance of its contract no later than seven days
from the receipt of each payment the prime contract receives from Tioga
County. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above-referenced
timeframe may occur only for good cause following written approval of Tioga
County. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontracts.

Directory:

Tioga County is a non-certifying member of the New York Certification Program
(UCP). The UCP maintains a directory identifying all firms eligible to participate as
DBEs which contains all the elements required. The New York UCP Directory can
be found at https://nysucp.newnycontracts.com/.

Overconcentration:

Tioga County has not identified that overconcentration exists in the types of
work that DBEs perform.

Business Development Programs:

Tioga County has a business development program. The daily work of
responding to the needs of industry and businesses is the task of Tioga County
Economic Development aond Planning. However, full implementation of
assistance also requires the assistance of the County's Local Development
Corporation and Industrial Development Agency. For information regarding
Tioga County's business development programs, please contact Tioga County
Economic Development and Planning located at 56 Main Street, Room 109,
Owego, New York 13827.



Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms:

Tioga County will take the following monitoring and enforcement mechanisms
fo ensure compliance with 49 CFR Part 26.

1. We will bring to the attention of the Department of Transportation any
false, fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so
that DOT can take the steps (e.g.. referral to the Department of Justice for
criminal prosecution, referral to the DOT Inspector General, action under
suspension and debarment or Program Fraud and Civil Penalties rules)
provided in 26.109.

2. Tioga County will consider similar action under our own legal authorities,
including responsibility determinations in future contracts.

3. Tioga County will aiso provide a monitoring and enforcement mechanism
to verity that work committed to DBEs at contract award is actually
performed by the DBEs. This will be accomplished by the DEBLO.

4. We will keep a running tally of actual payments to DBE firms for work
committed to them at the time of contract award.

GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING
Set-asides or Quotas:

Tioga County does not use quotas in any way in the administration of this DBE
Program.

Overall Goals:

Tioga County will establish an overall DBE goal covering three-year federal fiscal
year period if it anficipates awarding DOT-funded prime contracts the
cumulative total value of which exceeds $250,000 in DOT funds during any one
or more of the reporting fiscal years within the three-year goal period. Tioga
County will submit its Overall Three-year DBA Goal to FTA/FHWA by August 1 of
the year in which the goal is due.

The DBE goals will be established in accordance with the 2-step process as
specified in 49 CFR Part 26.45. If Tioga County does not anticipate awarding
prime contracts the cumulative total value of which exceeds $250,000 in DOT
funds during any of the years within the three-year reporting period, an overall
goal will not be developed. However, this DBE Program will remain in effect and
Tioga County will seek to fulfill the objectives outlined elaborated in the policy
statement located on the first page of this program.



Step 1: The first step is to determine a base figure for the relative availability of
DBEs in the market area. Tioga County will use the DBE Directory Information and
Census Bureau Data as a method to determine the base figure.

Step 2: The second step is to adjust, if necessary, the base figure percentage
from Step 1 so that it reflects as accurately as possible the DBE participation the
recipient would expect in the absence of discrimination. Tioga County will
examine all the evidence that is available in its jurisdiction to determine what
adjustment, if any, is needed. If the evidence does not suggest an adjustment is
necessary, then no adjustment shall be made.

Any methodology selected will be based on demonstratable evidence of local
market conditions and be designed to ultimately attain a goal that is rationally
related to the relative availability of DBEs in the Tioga County market.

Following this consultation, Tioga County will publish a notice of the proposed
overall goals, informing the public that the proposed goal and its rational are
available for inspection during normal business hours at the Ronald E. Dougherty
County Office Building for 30 days following the date of the notice, and
informing the public that you and DOT will accept comments on the goals for 45
days from the date of the notice. Normally, Tioga County will issue this notice by
June 1 of each year. The notice must include addresses to which comments
may be sent and addresses (including offices and websites) where the proposal
may be reviewed.

Tioga County's overall goal submission to DOT will include a summary of
information and comments received during this public participation process
and our responses.

Tioga County will begin using our overall goal on October 1 of each year unless
having received other instructions from DOT. If Tioga County establishes a goal
on a project basis, Tioga County will begin using our goal by the time of the first
solicitation for a DOT-assisted contract for the project.

Transit Vehicle Manufacturers Goals:

Tioga County will require each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of
being authorized to bid or propose on FTA and/or FHWA procurements, to
certify that it has complied with the requirements of this section. Alternatively,
Tioga County may, at its discretion and with FHWA approval, establish project-
specific goals for DBE participation in the procurement of transit vehicles in lieu
of the Transit Vehicle Manufacture complying with this element of the program.



Breakout of Estimated Race-Nevutral and Race-Conscious Participation

Tioga County will meet the maximum feasible portion of its overall goal by using
race-neutral means of facilitating race-neutral DBE participation. Race-neutral
DBE participation includes any time a DBE wins a prime confract through
customary competitive procurement procedures or is awarded a subcontract
on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE goal.

Race-neutral means include but are not limited to the following:

1. DBE participation through a prime contract that a DBE obtains through
customary competitive procurement procedures;

2. DBE participation through a subcontract on a prime contract that does
not carry a DBE goal;

3. DBE participation on a prime contract exceeding a contract goal;

4. DBE participation through a subcontract from a prime contractor that did
not consider a firm’s DBE status in making the award.

Contract Goails:

Tioga County will establish contract goals only on those DOT-assisted contracts
that have subcontracting possibilities. Tioga County need not establish a
contract goal on every such contract, and the size of contract goals will be
adapted to the circumstances of each such coniract.

Tioga County will express our contract goals as a percentage of the Federal
share of a DOT-assisted contract.

Good Faith Efforts Procedures:

The obligation of the bidder/offeror is to make good faith efforts. The
bidder/offeror can demonstrate that it has done so either by meeting the
contract goal or documenting good faith efforts.

Tioga County will ensure that all information is complete and accurate and
adequately documents the bidder/offeror's good faith efforts before we commit
to the performance of the contract by the bidder/offeror.

Information to be submitted:

Tioga County treats bidder/offers’ compliance with good faith efforts'
requirements as a matter of responsiveness.



Each solicitation for which a contract goal has been established will require the
bidders/offerors to submit the following information:

The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract;

1.

2. A description of the work that each DBE will perform;

3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;

4. Written and signed documentation of commitment to use a DBE
subcontractor whose participation it submits o meet a contract goai;

5. Written and signed confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the

contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment and
6. If the contract goalis not met, evidence of good faith efforts.

Administrative reconsideration:

Within thirty days of being informed by Tioga County that it is not responsive
because it has not documented sufficient good faith efforts, a bidder/offeror
may request administrative reconsideration. Bidder/offerors should make this
request in writing fo the following reconsideration official: The County Attorney's
Office located at 56 Main Street, Room 103, Owego, New York 13827, 607-687-
8253. The reconsideration official will not have played any role in the original
determination that the bidder/offeror did not document sufficient good faith
efforts.

As part of this reconsideration, the bidder/offeror will have the opportunity to
provide written documentation or argument concerning the issue of whether it
met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so. The bidder/offeror
will have the opportunity to meet in person with our reconsideration official to
discuss the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts
to do. Tioga County wil send the bidder/offeror a written decision on
reconsideration, explaining the basis for finding that the bidder did or did not
meet the goal or make adequate good faith efforts to do so. The result of the
reconsideration process is not administratively appealable to the Department of
Transportation.

Good Faith Efforts when a DBE is replaced on a contract:

Tioga County will require a contractor to make good faith efforts to replace a
DBE that is terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract
with another certified DBE, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal.
Tioga County will require the prime contractor to notify the DBE Licison Officer
immediately of the DBE's inability or unwilingness to perform and provide
reasonable documentation.



In this situation, Tioga County will require the prime contractor to obtain our prior
approval of the substitute DBE and to provide copies of new or amended
subcontracts, or documentation of good faith efforts.

If the coniractor fails or refuses to comply in the time specified, Tioga County will
issue an order stopping all or part of payment/work until satisfactory action has
been taken. If the contractor still fails to comply, Tioga County may issue a
termination for default proceeding.

Sample Bid Specification:

The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, Regulations of the U.S. Department of
Transportation, apply to this contract. It is the policy of the Tioga County to
practice non-discrimination based on race, color, sex, or national origin in the
award or performance of this contract. All firms qualifying under this solicitation
are encouraged to submit bids/proposals. Award of this contract will be
conditioned upon satisfying the requirements of this bid specification. These
requirements apply to all bidders/offerors, including those who qualify as a DBE.
A DBE contract goal of ___ percent has been established for this contract. The
bidder/offeror shall make good faith efforts to meet the contract goal for DBE
participation in the performance of this contract.

The bidder/offeror will be required to submit the following information: {1) the
names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract; {2) a
description of the work that each DBE firm will perform; {3) the dollar amount of
the participation of each DBE firm participating; (4) written documentation of
the bidder/offeror's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose
participation it submits fo meet the contract goal; (5) written confirmation from
the DBE that it is partficipating in the contract as provided in the commitment
made under (4); and (5} if the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith
efforts.

Counting DBE Participation:

Tioga County will count DBE participation toward overall and contract goals as
provided in 49 CFR 26.55.

CERTIFICATION STANDARDS
Certification Process:

Tioga County does not certify DBEs and will rely on NYSDOT United Certification
Program to certify DBEs and will accept all certification decisions made by



NYSDOT's UCP. Any business wishing to be certified as a DBE business will be
referred to NYSDOIT.

For information about the certification process or to apply for certification, firms
should contact:

Department of Transportation, Departmental Office of Civil Rights

1200 New Jersey Ave, S.E. Washington, DC 20590.

Phone: 202-366-4648

Fax: 202-366-5575

CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES
Unified Certification Programs:

Tioga County is a member of a United Certification Program (UPC) administered
by the New York State Department of Transportation. The UCP will meet all the
requirements of this section.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT
Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation:

Tioga County will safeguard from disclosing to third parties’ information that may
reasonably be regarded as confidential business information, consistent with
Federal, State, and tocal law. It is the policy of Tioga County government that
the public should generally have free and easy access to county government
records except as restricted by Federal or State law or to support individual
personal privacy. The County's records management and FOIL process is
governed by NYS Public Officers Law, Arlicle 6 and the County follows the New
York State LGS-1 Schedule for managing document retention and disposition.

Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of State or Local law, Tioga County wiill
not release personal financial information submitted in response to the personal
net worth requirement to a third party {other than DOT) without the written
consent of the submitter,

Monitoring Payments to DBEs:

Tioga County will require prime contractors to maintain records and documents
of payments to DBEs for three years following the performance of the contract.
These records will be made available for inspection upon request by any
authorized representative of Tioga County or DOT. This reporting requirement
also extends to any certified DBE subcontractor,



Tioga County will perform interim audits of contract payments to DBEs. The audit
will review payments to DBE subcontractors to ensure that the actual amount
paid to DBE subcontractors equals or exceeds the dollar amounts stated in the
schedule of DBE participation.



REFERRED TO: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
LEGISLATIVE WORKSESSION
FINANCE, LEGAL & SAFETY COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 193-18, AS AMENDED BY
RESOLUTION NO. 45-23; AS AMENDED BY
RESOLUTION NO. 255-23 ADOPTION OF TIOGA
COUNTY TITLE VI PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE
PLAN, LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN, DATA
COLLECTION PLAN, ADA TRANSITION PLAN AND
EMPLOYEE TRAINING PLAN

WHEREAS: The Tioga County Legislature adopted the Tioga County Title VI Plan,
Environmental Justice Plan, Limited English Proficiency Plan, Data Collection Plan,
ADA Transition Plan, and Employee Training Plan by way of Resolution No. 193-18
on August 17, 2018, and amended the Plan by way of Resolution No. 45-23 on
January 10, 2023, and Resolution No. 255-23 on June 13, 2023; and

WHEREAS: The Federal Transit Administration recently audited the County's Title VI
Plan; and

WHEREAS: The Federal Transit Administration is requiring minor revisions to the
County’s Title VI Plan as follows:
o Title VI Plan Table of Contents Attachment 4—Title VI Nondiscrimination
Policy be renamed Attachment 4—Nondiscrimination Policy
¢ The Tioga County Title VI Complaint Form be renamed the Tioga County Civil
Rights Complaint Form
s Attachment 4: Title VI/Non-Discrimination Policy be renamed Non-
Discrimination Policy

Therefore be it

RESOLVED: That this resolution shall amend Resolution No. 193-18, as amended by
Resolution No. 45-23, as amended by Resolution No. 255-23, only for the following
revisions to the Tioga County Title VI Plan:
o Title VI Plan Table of Contents Attachment 4—Title VI Nondiscrimination
Policy be renamed Attachment 4—Nondiscrimination Policy
¢ The Tioga County Title VI Complaint Form be renamed the Tioga County Civil
Rights Complaint Form
e Attachment 4: Title Vi/Non-Discrimination Policy be renamed Non-
Discrimination Policy

And be it further



RESOLVED: That the remainder of the Tioga County Title VI Plan remains
unchanged.



REFERRED TO: FINANCE, LEGAL AND SAFETY COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOX:
ADD NEW POLICY TO SECTION IX. SAFETY RULES;
SUBSECTION E. ENTITLED TIOGA COUNTY RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION PROGRAM FOR THE VOLUNTARY USE OF
RESPIRATORS

WHEREAS: The current Tioga County Respiratory Protection Program policy does not
address voluntary use of respirators; and

WHEREAS: Many Tioga County departments have a supply of N95 masks due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, however, there is not a County policy that allows for continued
voluntary use once the pandemic emergency orders expired; and

WHEREAS: The Safety Officer in cooperation with Tioga County Public Health has written

a policy to address the voluntary use of respirators for Tioga County employees;
therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes the adoption of Tioga County
Respiratory Protection Program for the Voluntary Use of Respirators; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Employee Handbook is hereby amended to add a new policy to
Section IX, Subsection e. entitled Tioga County Respiratory Protection Program for the
Voluntary Use of Respirators.

e. TIOGA COUNTY RESPIRATORY PROTECTION PROGRAM FOR THE VOLUNTARY USE OF
RESPIRATORS

CONTENTS:

l. SCOPE AND APPLICATION

Il.  PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

. MEDICAL EVALUATION
V.  CLEANING, MAINTAINING, AND STORING THE RESPIRATORS
V. PROGRAM REVIEW

APPENDIX D - §1910.134- INFORMATION FOR EMPLOYEES USING THE
RESPIRATORS WHEN NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE STANDARD

FORM 1: RESPIRATORS FOR VOLUNTARY USE DETERMINED THROUGH HAZARD
ASSESSMENTS

SIGN-OFF FORM FOR VOLUNTARY RESPIRATOR USE: APPENDIX D



I.

SCOPE AND APPLICATION

This program applies when employees request to use respirators in situations
where the Tioga County Safety Officer has determined, through an evaluation of
the hazards as outlined in Table 1, that respiraior use is not required by any
applicable OSHA standard. In these situations, employees may be given
supervisory permission to use respiratory protection for comfort or for additional
protection. This policy covers the use of dust masks or N95 filtering facepiece
respirators only.

Respirators are an effective method of protection against designated hazards
when properly selected and worn. Respirator use is sometimes advisable, even
when exposures are below the exposure limit, to provide an additional level of
comfort and protection for workers. However, if a respirator is used improperly or
not kept clean, the respirator itself can become a hazard to the worker.

Any employee who wants to wear a respirator — other than a dust mask - on @
voluntary basis is subject to the medical evaluation requirement; all voluntary
users are subject to the cleaning, maintenance, and storage elements of this
program.

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Respiratory Protection Program Administrator is the knowledgeable person at
the workplace who is responsible for overseeing this program for the voluntary use
of respiratory protection. The Program Administrator for Tioga County is the Safety
Officer.

The Program Administrator has the following duties:

*Evaluate the workplace for respiratory hazards.

*Ensure that the respirators being used voluntarily are appropriate for the
employee’s job and intended function.

* Ensure that employees maintain and store their respirators in a sanitary
condition,

* Provide voluntary users with the information contained in OSHA's
Respiratory  Protection Standard, 29CFR1910.134: Appendix D
“Information for employees using respirators when not required under the
standard.”

* Maintain any training records and/or the employee’'s acknowledgement
for receiving Appendix D.



MEDICAL EVALUATION

Dust masks and N95 filtering facepiece respirators do not require a medicat
evaluation for voluntary use.

. CLEANING, MAINTAINING, AND STORING THE RESPIRATORS

Cleaning

Dust masks and N95 filtering facepiece respirators are "disposable respirators.”
They must be discarded after use, or when they become damaged or soiled.
Replace dust masks and N95 respirators regularly after use or when the surface is
torn, dirty or the straps break.

Maintenance

Reusable respirators must be properly maintained. Maintenance includes a
thorough visual inspection for cleanliness and defects. [t must be discarded after
use, or when it becomes damaged or soiled.

Respirator Storage

Respirators must be stored in a clean, dry area according to the manufacturer's
recommendations. Respirators should be stored in a manner so that the dust mask
is not bent or distorted.

PROGRAM REVIEW

The Program Administrator will evaluate the Voluntary Respirator Program
annually to ensure that it's adequate and that employee concerns regarding
respiratory protection are addressed.



APPENDIX D TO §1910.134: INFORMATION FOR EMPLOYEES USING RESPIRATORS WHEN
NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE STANDARD (MANDATORY)

Respirators are an effective method of protection against designated hazards when
properly selected and worn. Respirator use is encouraged, even when exposures are
below the exposure limit, to provide an additional level of comfort and protection for
workers. However, if a respirator is used improperly or not kept clean, the respirator itself
can become a hazard to the worker. Sometimes, workers may wear respirators to avoid
exposure to hazards, even if the amount of hazardous substance does not exceed the
limits set by OSHA standards. If your employer provides respirators for your voluntary use,
or if you provide your own respirator, you need to take certain precautions to be sure
that the respirator itself does not present a hazard.

You should do the following:

1.

Read and heed dall instructions provided by the manufacturer on use,
maintenance, cleaning and care, and warnings regarding the respirator's
fimitations.

Choose respirators certified for use to protect against the contaminant of
concern. NIOSH, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, certifies respirators. A label
or statement of cerfification should appear on the respirator or respirator
packaging. It will tell you what the respirator is designed for and how much it
will protect you.

Do not wear your respirator in atmospheres containing contaminants which
your respirator is not designed to protect against. For exampie, a respirator
designed to filter dust particles will not protect you against gases, vapors, or
very small solid particles of fumes or smoke.

4. Keep track of your respirator so that you do not mistakenly use someone else's

respirator.

[63 FR 1152, Jan. 8, 1998; 463 FR 20098, 20099, April 23, 1998; assembled at 69 FR 46993,
Aug. 4, 2004, 71 FR 16672, April 3, 2006; 71 FR 50187]



FORM 1: RESPIRATORS FOR VOLUNTARY USE - DETERMINED THROUGH HAZARD

Respirators for voluntary use at Tioga County Department of Public Works

ASSESSMENTS
Respirator Area affected
Dust Mask Mowing and
Filtering trimming

facepiece-N95  operations

Hazard

Grass chaff, pollen and dust. Respirators
are not required by OSHA standard, but
dust masks/N95 may be used for
employee comfort.

Respirators for voluntary use at all Tioga County Departments

Respirator Area affected
Dust Mask All outdoor work
Filtering

facepiece-N95

Hazard

Decreased air quality due to fine
particulate matter in the atmosphere.
Respirators are not required by OSHA
standard, but dust masks/N25 may be
used for employee comfort.



SIGN-OFF FORM FOR VOLUNTARY RESPIRATOR USE: APPENDIX D

Some Tioga County employees may choose to use filtering facepiece respirators, also
referred to as N95 disposable dust masks, on a voluntary basis during activities that
involve exposures to low-level, non-hazardous nuisance dust or other similar particulate.
According to the Tioga County Respiratory Protection Program for the Voluntary Use of
Respirators and Occupational Safety and Health Administration {OSHA) regulations,
Tioga County must provide you with the following information if you wear a filtering
facepiece respirator voluntarily. The following information is copied from the OSHA
Respiratory Protection Standard and pertains to the voluntary use of respirators. After
reading the information below, please complete the section at the end of this form.

The filtering facepiece respirator you have elected to use is approved, when fitted
properly, for use against nuisance non-hazardous particulate (sawdust, dirt, polien,
animal dander and atmospheric fine particulates). It will not provide protection from
any chemical vapors such as those associated with spray paints or solvents. It is not
intended for use during work that may involve exposure to airborne asbestos fibers, silica
dust, or lead dust. Work you perform that may involve airborne asbestos fibers, silica
dust, or lead dust should be reviewed by the Safety Office before the project proceeds.
If you have questions concerning any of this information, please call the Safety Office
at {607) 687-8238.

Please complete the section below:

Name (print}:

Job Location/Department:

| have read and understood the information provided above:

Signature: Date:



